ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 27, 2015
3:02 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representative Liz Vazquez, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Geran Tarr

Represent ati ve Adam Wol

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON: DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & SOCI AL SERVI CES TELE- HEALTH
PROGRAM

- HEARD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 39

"An Act establishing the Advisory Committee on Wellness; and
relating to the administration of state group health insurance
policies.”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 39

SHORT TITLE: PUBL EMPL HEALTH INS; WELLNESS COWM TTEE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H) HSS, FIN

01/ 27/ 15 (H HSS AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

DUANE MAYES, Director

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2015



Central Ofice

D vi sion of Senior and Disabilities Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a PowerPoint, titled "Results For
Al askans. "

M CHELE M CHAUD, Chief Health Oficial

Division of Retirenents and Benefits

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the fiscal
note for HB 39.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:02: 30 PM

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Commttee nmeeti ng to or der at 3:02 p. m
Representatives Seaton, Tarr, Wol, Talerico, Stutes, and
Vazquez were present at the call to order. Representative
Foster arrived as the neeting was in progress.

PRESENTATI ON:  DEPARTMVENT OF HEALTH & SOCI AL SERVI CES TELE- HEALTH
PROGRAM

3:03: 03 PM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the first order of business would be
a presentation by the Departnment of Health and Social Services
on the tele-health program

3:03: 54 PM

DUANE MAYES, Director, Central Ofice, Division of Senior and
Disabilities Services, Departnment of Health and Social Services,
directed attention to a handout, "SDS Continuum of Care"
[I ncluded in nmenbers' packets]. He stated that, as the division
was the long-term care entity, it included the Medicaid waiver
program and personal care attendant services. He referenced the
grant prograns for $28 million directed at the Iower end of care
for seniors and those with disabilities, which allowed them to
remain integrated in their comunities at a |lower cost than the
institutional placenent costs for nursing hones and internediate
care facilities for individual developnental disabilities. He
poi nted out that this handout |isted the nunber of people served

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2015



by conponent, the overall cost of each conponent, and the
per cent ages of federal and state paynent for each. He directed
attention to the Personal Care Assistance Program and the Hone &
Communi ty Based Wi vers. Each year, it was necessary to assess
each individual receiving services in order to determne the
need to continue with these benefits for that |level of care. He
noted that about 9,000 individuals received these services from
the State of Al aska, and required re-assessments annually. This
did not include those who were initially applying for the
servi ces.

CHAI R SEATON asked whether the average costs listed in each
col utmm were per year.

MR. MAYES expressed his agreenent and added that i ndividuals
could be receiving services which were accounted for in nore
than one colum. He directed attention to the PowerPoint
presentation titled "Results For Al askans,"” slide 2, "Wat is
Tel e- Heal t h?" He stated that, although there were a nunber of
definitions for tele-health, the followng was pretty accurate:
"the use of el ectronic equi pnent and tel ecomrunications
technol ogy to support long distance health care and education.”
He shared that there were three division offices, Juneau,
Fai r banks, and Anchorage, with video conferencing equipnment for
t he weekly staff |eadership neetings.

3:11: 57 PM

MR. MAYES noved on to slide 3, "How do we use it?", pointing out
the <challenge for personal care assistance reassessnents,
especially for people in rural Al aska. It was far |ess
expensive for people to be integrated into their community and
its supports versus being admtted to a nursing hone. He noted
that, as there was a statewide responsibility for adult
protective services investigations, there was a challenge for
those enquiries in rural Al aska. Finally, this wuse of
t el ecommuni cati ons equi pnent and video conferencing |owered the
cost for staff training.

3:14: 24 PM

MR. MAYES addressed slide 4, "Why are we using it?" He pointed
out that there was a challenge to conduct the initial and annual
re-assessnents for personal care and waivers in rural Al aska, as
20 percent of the recipients were from rural Al aska. He shared
an anecdote about a visit to a village in rural Al aska, and the
difficulties for tinely conpliance due to weather and other

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2015



barri ers. He said that tele-health equipnent and partnerships
with the tribal health associations and village clinics had
facilitated these tinely assessnents and saved the state about
$100, 000 since the inception of the system He shared that, as
there was a set of benchmarks to indicate whether hands-on,
vi sual contact was necessary, the overall quality and tineliness
for assessnents, comuni cati ons, and adm ni stration was
i mpr oved.

3:18: 38 PM

MR. MAYES introduced slide 5, "What have we acconplished?" He
reported that there were agreenents in place with three tribal
partners, including Tanana Chi efs Conference. He expl ai ned that
they were working together on a plan to bring nore hone care
delivery and services to rural Al aska. He expressed an intent

by the departnment to have all the tribal partnerships in
agreenent for this nodality of reassessnents and initial
assessnents. He shared that it had been necessary to devel op

policy and processes, evaluate the initial assessnents wth
input from the partners and recipients, and then build a tele-
heal th team from existing staff.

3:20: 31 PM

MR. MAYES presented slide 6, "Wat are our next steps?" and
reported that the work plan was being inplenented, there was
outreach to establish increased agreenments wth the triba
partners, and that he would talk with anyone about tele-health.
Moving on to slide 7, "Way is this inportant to ne?", he noted
that the advent of technology had a huge inpact on the deaf
community and he shared an anecdote about his childhood in an
all deaf famly.

3:25: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked how the division acconmodat ed | anguage
barriers, reporting that there were alnost 90 |anguages in her
district. She pointed out the problem for health care
provi ders.

MR. MAYES, in response, explained that DHSS had contracts for

interpreters, and upon assessnent, |ocal staff could use these
contractors for accurate assessnents. He pointed out that,
al though interpreters were expensive, it was too subjective to
rely on a famly nenber for interpretation and accurate

assessnents.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked how to find that information.
MR. MAYES offered to supply the infornmation.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked that this information be supplied to
the commttee.

3:27:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked which assessnents had been done in
t he past year.

MR. MAYES replied that the majority of the assessed individuals
were in rural Alaska, and that these were primarily PCA
(personal care assistance) services for reassessnents. He
reported that the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services had
expressed agreenent with this, as DHSS wanted to use this for
wai vers, as well. He opined that tele-health may not be the
vehicle for a very conplicated assessnent.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked if the plan was to primarily use
tele-health for the PCA program

MR. MAYES expressed his agreenent, as the departnment wanted to
solidify its processes, and was now prepared to nove forward
with the reassessnents for Medicaid waivers.

3:29:30 PM

CHAI R SEATON asked whether tele-health was confined solely to
the Division of Senior and Disabilities Services or if other
departnments pi ggybacked on the system

MR. MAYES said that, although it was specific to his division,
he was open to access of the equipnment by other directors. He
noted that his division had a high vol unme of use.

CHAI R SEATON asked what the assessnents entailed, and if they
requi red physical conponents, such as bl ood pressure.

MR. MAYES explained that these were functional assessnents, a
consuner assessnment tool (CAT). If it was concluded through the
assessnent that the individual nmet nursing hone |evel of care,
they were given the option for this or for hone care wth "sone
wrap around supports.” He said that the activities of daily
living (ADLs) dealt with self-care, and if an individual had

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -5- January 27, 2015



three ADL limtations, they would neet Ievel of care. He
poi nted out that other questions would determ ne whether acute
care was necessary, and this would determne qualification for a
wai ver. He declared that the assessnment tool was conplicated.

3:32:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked whether his division facilitated
coordi nation of care, or only perforned the assessnents.

MR. MAYES, in response, said that his division had 21 assessors
around Al aska and performed all the assessnents in the state
system He shared that 80 percent of the assessnents were in
urban communities. He explained that services were delivered by
provi ders; so, after assessnment and qualification for |evel of
care was determned, a care coordinator would work wth the
individual to develop a plan of care, identifying the necessary
services and the <corresponding providers to deliver these
services. He noted that DHSS paid these providers.

3:33:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked for clarification whether his
division also connected eligible individuals to the necessary
servi ces.

MR. MAYES, in response, said that his division did not nake that
connection for the specific services. He explained that the
Medi cai d wai ver included a Medicaid care coordinator trained by
the division to do the planning, work with the recipient to
devel op the necessary services, and then coordi nate the service.

REPRESENTATI VE STUTES asked if an individual already had a care
coordinator prior to the assessnent.

MR. MAYES expressed agreenent.

3:35: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked whether there were any difficulties
for approval of enough tine for assistance within the persona
care assi stance program

MR. MAYES, in response, stated that the personal care attendant
program had been a concern, and his division was working on

"right sizing" the program and "getting better controls around
it." He offered anecdotal evidence of sonme fraud in the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2015



program stating that his division was working in direct
partnership with the Medicaid fraud control unit. He shared
that the costs to the personal care attendant (PCA) program had
been reduced, noting that three of the four providers suspended
for allegations of fraud, were very |arge. He said that his
division had re-witten the PCA regulations, and that the
provider no longer perfornmed the assessnent, as this had been
determned to be a conflict of interest. He reported that the
"hours of want"” by an individual had been reduced to the "hours
of need,” noting that Al aska was "an aging state" and it was
necessary to serve as nmany as possible with what funds were
avai |l abl e. He explained that this was "right sizing the
program' by cleaning up the waste, fraud, and abuse.

3:38: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked whether there was interface wth
data fromthe Departnment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent.

MR. MAYES replied that, within DHSS, each individual providing
services had a renderer nunber to track the hours of care
provi ded, which had enabl ed the identification of some fraud.

MR. MAYES, in response to Representative Vazquez, said that the
Division of Health Care Services was nonitoring this, and he
suggested that its director, Margaret Brodie, could better
di scuss the details about the enterprise system

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked about the adult protective
services' Jlack of a nechanism for tracking down PCA past
of f enses.

MR. MAYES replied that the division had contracted for a new
case managenent system and part of this was an integration
system He referenced a centralized intake system

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked about the nunber of software
dat abases and prograns currently being used by his division.

MR. MAYES expressed agreenent that it had been very high in the
past, but he was wunsure of how many there were currently,
although it had been whittled down. He explained that each
division had representation on an |T governance comrittee, so
every new system had to be vetted through this commttee, wth
the wunderstanding that any existing systens would be used if
capabl e of addressing the need.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked about the nunber of enployees in
qgual ity assurance.

MR. MAYES, in response, said that was he was very aware of the
i nportance of quality assurance. He relayed that there was a
quality assurance unit with 7 or 8 staff, which had received a
| ot of cross training for investigations.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how many referrals there were to
the Medicaid Fraud Control unit during the past fiscal year.

MR. MAYES, in response, reported that the division had kept the
Medi caid Fraud Control unit very busy, but he did not know how
many suspensions from providing services or admnistrative
sanction cases there had been.

CHAI R SEATON suggested that the commttee submt requests to the
di vision for specific details.

HB 39- PUBL EMPL HEALTH I NS; WELLNESS COWVM TTEE

3:46: 34 PM

CHAI R SEATON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 39, "An Act establishing the Advisory Committee
on Wellness; and relating to the admnistration of state group
heal th i nsurance policies."

Chair Seaton passed the gavel to Vice Chair Vazquez.

3:47: 26 PM

The conmmittee took a brief at-ease.

3:48: 31 PM
CHAIR SEATQN, as the bill sponsor, introduced HB 39, and
par aphrased from the sponsor statement, which read, in part

[ ncluded in nenbers' packets]:

HB 39 requires the Conm ssioner of the Departnment of
Adm nistration to inplenment procedures for decreasing
the incidence of disease in Alaska in order to hold
the inflation of healthcare costs of active and
retired Al aska state enpl oyees to 2 percent per year.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2015



HB 39 creates an Advisory Commttee on Wellness which
is charged wth mking recomendations to the
Comm ssioner of Adm nistration on ways to decrease the
i nci dence of disease in Al aska.

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to Section 1 of the Sectional
Anal ysis [Included in nenbers' packets] and explained that the
| egislative findings and the intent |anguage state that we can
prevent disease by lowering the incidence of disease, and that
prevention will slow the rate of health care cost in the state.
He referenced House Concurrent Resolution 5, passed unani nously
in 2011, which called upon the governor to use prevention of
di sease as the primary nodel of health care by nmaking people
aware of prevention strategies, including Vitamn D use. He
stated that the previous admnistration had not pursued this
goal, but he was hopeful that the current adm nistration would
work toward this. He noved on to Section 2 which required the
Departnment of Administration (DOA), to the extent legally and
reasonably practical, to inplenent the recommendations of the
Advi sory Committee on Wellness and reduce the annual escal ation
of health care costs to no nore than 2 percent.

3:50: 51 PM

CHAIR SEATON explained that Section 3 listed these sane
requirenents to be applied for self-insurance and excess |o0ss

i nsur ance. In Section 4, the Advisory Conmttee on Wl lness in
the Departnent of Adm nistration was established, requiring the
DOA to respond within six nonths to the reconmendations. He

allowed that there had been an advisory conmttee in the past,
but there had not been any requirenent for accountability to
address the reconmrendations. He pointed out that a simlar
panel, the Citizens Review Panel, nmade suggestions to the Ofice
of Children's Services in the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Servi ces. The departnent was required to respond to these
recommendations, and it was this accountability structure that
he wanted to duplicate in Section 4 of the bill. The proposed
bill did not mandate anything except a wellness conmttee that
woul d make recomrendations to DOA to the extent legally and
reasonably practical to lower the escalating health care costs.
He all owed that he had focused on Vitamn D and the many studies

that showed its ability to prevent disease. In the proposed
bill, this comittee would be established to focus on state
wor ker s and retirees, as the state has a contractual

relationship with them Directing attention to slide 2 of a
Power Point presentation titled "HB 39 Prevention of D sease
Decreasing the Al aska Healthcare Liability," he referenced the

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -9- January 27, 2015



huge estimted annual growth in costs for healthcare liability.
Moving on to slide 3, he pointed out that $3.8 billion was
related to the wunfunded liability for PERS/ TRS health care
because the contribution rates had been established for an
estimated 2 percent annual growh in cost. Al the cost beyond
this 2 percent was an unfunded liability. He opined that it was
possible to keep the growh under 2 percent, and this could
elimnate the $3.8 billion of wunfunded liability. He stated
that there were nore than 17,000 active state enployees and
64, 000 retired enployees and dependents covered by the State of
Al aska health care, slide 4, "Wy are we here?" Moving on to
slide 5 "Alaska's Health-Care Bill: $7.5 Billion and dinbing,"
he pointed to Governnent Enployees, Qher, and Medicaid Expenses
as the target areas for proposed HB 39, pointing out that nore
than 60 percent of health care dollars were spent on hospita
care, clinical services, and doctors, as shown on slide 6.

Moving on to slide 7, he asked the question: "How can we avoid
di sease and prevent illness instead of just paying for sick
care?"

CHAI R SEATON directed attention to slide 8, "Active Plan," and
pointed to the studies that showed 66 percent of the total
groupi ng of diseases directly related to low Vitamn D. Slide
9, "Retiree Plan,"” also reflected on diseases with studies that
reflected responses related to |ow Vitam n D.

CHAI R SEATON noved on to slide 10, "Meta-analysis of breast
cancer risk," which showed five different studies stating that
the neta-analysis showed a 50 percent reduction, while a
Grassroots Health clinical trial of wonen above age 60 showed
there was a 75 percent reduction for breast cancer, when Vitamn
D |l evels were 50ng/m or above. On slide 11, he noted that the
nonetary savings for a 50 percent reduction of breast cancer
would save nore than $3 million annually, and a 72 percent
reduction of breast cancer woul d recogni ze a $4, 355, 000 savi ngs.

3:59:48 PM

CHAIR SEATON directed attention to slide 12, "Meta-analysis,"
whi ch depicted a 50 percent reduction in colorectal cancer when
Vitamin D levels were 34 ng/m, even |lower than breast cancer.
Reviewing the costs on slide 13, a 50 percent reduction in
colorectal cancer would save about $2 mllion each year. Moving
on to slide 14, "Type 2 Diabetes,” a clinical trial showed the
NHANES (National Health and Nutrition Exam nation Survey) in
2006 showed the new incidence of Diabetes to be 8.5 per thousand
peopl e, whereas an average of 48 ng/m showed an average of |ess

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- January 27, 2015



than 1 incident per thousand people. He pointed out that this

was a 90 percent reduction in type 2 D abetes. He pointed to
the cost savings, slide 15, which reflected nore than $4 mllion
in savings with a 90 percent reduction, and alnbst $2 mllion

savings for a 38 percent reduction in Type 2 Di abetes.
4:01: 56 PM

CHAI R SEATON noved on to slides 16 and 17, and discussed the
i ncidence of pre-termbirth in Al aska. He shared that March of
Dines was working on lowering the rate of pre-termbirth to 9.3
percent, while an eight year study in South Carolina sponsored
by the National Institutes of Health (N H) suggested that the
use of Vitamn D could reduce this to 7 percent, a 32 percent
reduction fromthe current rate in Alaska. He reported that the
savings in Al aska could be about $1, 300,000 per year. Directing
attention to slide 18, "Upper Respiratory Tract Infections," he
allowed that, although not expensive diseases, studies showed
that there were 50 percent fewer infections, i ncl udi ng
pneunoni a, tuberculosis, flu, and colds, for those who had a
hi gher |evel of Vitamn D. He declared that this could be very
significant for Al aska. He spoke about "inflammtory gum
di sease,” slide 19, reporting that the body protected against
nost inflammtion by laying on plaque, and pointed out that 80
percent of gingivitis was elimnated in 90 days when Vitamn D
use was nore than 2000 | W day. He shared that, as heart disease
also started from inflammuation, this study on gingivitis could
be a good indicator of how increasing Vitamn D levels could
save a |l ot on other diseases, as well.

4:06: 22 PM

CHAIR SEATON pointed to slide 20, "House Bill No. 39," and
focused on Section 2 of the proposed bill, slide 21, which read
in part: "to the greatest extent legally and reasonably
practicable...” He declared that the proposed bill was not
trying to mandate anything, instead proposing to nove forward
with better health to help lower the annual rate increase of
heal th care cost.

4: 06: 54 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER stated that he would |like to have soneone

from his district appointed to the proposed advisory commttee,
and asked how regions for the commttee would be deli neat ed.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2015



CHAIR SEATON replied that there was not any guideline for
regi onal appointnents and, as it was a volunteer position, any
i nterested persons woul d be wel cone to apply.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER, in reference to the best, new and
i nnovative practices, asked for suggestions on how information
about the benefits of adequate Vitamin D could becone nore
mai nst ream

CHAIR SEATON clarified t hat t he af orenent i oned wel | ness
commttee would be at |east seven nenmbers, and it could be

expanded. He suggested that the proposed conmmittee could neet
tel ephonically, in order to save travel expenses. He expressed
his hope that the proposed bill wuld engage the state
wor kf or ce. He opined that public recognition and understandi ng

for such a dramatic decrease in a variety of diseases would | ead
to an increased use of Vitamn D. He pointed out that, although
the federal government already nmandated that Vitanmin D be added
to mlk to aid in the prevention of rickets, the proposed bil
did not include any mandates. He suggested that generating talk
in the communities, villages, and town councils would go a |ong
way toward broadening the education, and would lead to a
heal t hi er Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER noted that the proposed advisory committee
had a zero fiscal note. He added that he would tout Vitam n D
in his next constituent newsletter.

4:13: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referenced an existing informal wellness
committee within DOA, and she asked if the proposed conmttee
woul d transition this existing commttee toward nore pernmanence.
She stated that it was obvious how this would work for state
health plan beneficiaries, but asked how the recomendations
fromthe wellness commttee would i nfluence Medicaid recipients.

CHAI R SEATON, in response to Representative Tarr, opined that
the current informal commttee had been |ess active over tineg,
as there was not any formal conmittee report or response

necessary. He conpared this to the effectiveness from the
Citizen Review Panel report to the Ofice of Children's
Services, with its requirenent of a response from DHSS. He

offered his belief that expensive recommendations could cone to
the commttee, which may not be possible for the admnistration
and the department to utilize. He noted that, however, there
could also be huge benefits at very little cost. He offered a

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -12- January 27, 2015



few incentive ideas, which included a co-pay and agreenment to
increase Vitamin D, pointing out that ideas which did not
require a big change in your lifestyle were nuch easier to
attain.

4:17:54 PM

VICE CHAIR VAZQUEZ declared that she was a big fan of wellness
and prevention, and that she was delighted to see the proposed
bill conme before the conmmttee. She asked how to get the
concept for the inportance of Vitamn D to the Medicaid
popul ati on, acknowl edging that there could be many conplex
i ssues. She suggested that Legislative Legal Services could
of f er gui dance.

CHAI R SEATON suggested that, as the Al aska state enployees and
retirees addressed in this bill were alnost 10 percent of the
popul ati on, the Departnment of Administration |owering healthcare
cost escalation would be instrunental in |eading the Departnent
of Health and Social Services to take this approach, as well
which is where the Medicaid population would be inpacted. He
opi ned that other enployers throughout Al aska would al so respond
to any savings. He directed attention to a study for
presenteeism and its inpact on work productivity [Included in
menbers' packets].

4:22:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR suggested that care coordination for
phar maceuti cal use by Medicaid recipients in other states could
be a nodel

CHAI R SEATON shared that many of his constituents had decl ared
appreciation for this information.

VICE CHAIR VAZQUEZ added that this was also a "conpassion
i ssue. "

REPRESENTATI VE  TALERICO reported t hat an Al aska | abor
organi zation had instituted a wellness policy that required
physi cal exam nations, and that the rate of co-pay was increased
if healthy attributes were not attained. He opined that it was
necessary to inprove the cost effectiveness in order to continue
to pay for services, especially during tines of budget
constraints.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 13- January 27, 2015



CHAI R SEATON stated that it was good to have Vitamin D levels
checked, and he shared that DOA had been nore receptive than
DHSS in the recent past for the financial i npact from
prevention. He relayed that soft tissue responded best to daily
doses of Vitamn D, which only had a 24 hour half-life. He
noted that there was sufficient data for the 1ingestion of
various amounts of Vitamn D, and that it had been shown to be
nost effective for 83 percent of the people to be above 40 ng/ni
of Vitamn D

CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative Foster, directed
attention to page 2, line 24, of the proposed bill, which stated
its goal to slow the escalation of health care costs to |ess
than 2 percent annually by adm nistering the policies.

4:30: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked for clarification that the proposed
bill would set up an advisory conmttee on wellness to guide the
admnistration, and that this would be enforced through group
health insurance to increase the overall health of its
recipi ents. He asked if there wuld be other healthy

recommendati ons fromthe advisory conmittee.

CHAI R SEATON expressed his agreenent, noting that there could be
many sinple solutions. He shared that previously there had been
a focus on exercise as a solution. He reported that the
af orenenti oned studies were an exanple that would allow nunbers
and percentages to be put on "this pretty sinple and cheap thing
that we could do for Al askans.™

REPRESENTATI VE WOCOL mused that research supported that it was
necessary to get people to take Vitamn D daily and nmaintain
that level, although a big part of the issue was to "get people
educated about it."

CHAIR SEATON expressed his agreenent that conpliance was
difficult, even as the Vitamn D studies showed a decrease in
fatigue, pain, and bone breakage. He pointed to six new studies
whi ch showed that the rate of denentia and Al zheinmer's was cut
in half with a good level of Vitamn D. He stated that sharing
this i nformation I n newsl etters would allow a  better
under st andi ng of the benefits, and would help with conpliance.

4:34:41 PM

Vice Chair Vazquez returned the gavel to Chair Seaton

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2015



4:34:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if soneone from Departnent of
Adm ni stration woul d coordi nate the proposed wel |l ness comm ttee.

M CHELE M CHAUD, Chief Health Oficial, D vision of Retirenments
and Benefits, Departnment of Adm nistration, replied that
currently there was a wellness coordinator who chaired the
conmmittee, and she opined that, at the least, the wellness
coordinator would serve on the commttee, if not serve as the

chair. In response to Representative Tarr, she said that the
wel | ness newsletter was sent electronically to active enployees
and posted on Facebook for the retired enployees. She pointed

out that nmany retired enployees did not use electronic neans,
and, as postage was expensive, the departnent was sonmewhat
limted in the frequency for its comunications with the retiree
popul ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR offered to include the information in her
newsl etters.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked Ms. Mchaud for her opinion to
consideration of an amendnent to the proposed bill which would
require an annual report be sent to the Al aska State Legislature
fromboth the advisory conmttee and the DOA.

M5. MCHAUD offered her belief that this would not change the
fiscal note.

4:38: 02 PM

CHAIR SEATON asked if the Departnment of Admnistration had
reviewed the proposed bill other than for the fiscal note, and
if so, was DOA supportive of it.

M5. MCHAUD said that DOA supported wellness and wellness
nmeasures, but there were challenges to hold under an annual 2
percent cost grow h.

CHAI R SEATON clarified that, although this was a goal, exceeding
the 2 percent was not a violation of the proposed statute.

4:39: 37 PM

CHAI R SEATON opened public testinony.

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 15- January 27, 2015



4:39:58 PM

CHAIR SEATON, in response to Representative Foster, said he
would like to hold the bill wuntil the conmmttee neeting on
February 5, as there would be further testinony for |owering
heal th care costs.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ noted that her research, while working on
her MBA in health care services admnistration, showed that
wel | ness prograns were often very effective in cost savings.
4:41: 44 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Health and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 4:41 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 16- January 27, 2015



